
Agenda School Committee Meeting 3/13/2023 

   Mission Statement 

The mission of the Gardner Public School System is to prepare, in collaboration with parents, 
students who are ready upon graduation for the challenges of college and career without 
remediation.  This will be done in a safe, caring, just and equitable environment.  Our Core 
Values are Academic Excellence, Creativity, Respect and Responsibility. 

Notice: The listing of agenda items are those reasonably anticipated by the Chairman which may 
be discussed at the meeting. Not all items listed may in fact be discussed and other items not 
listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. 

Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting, or may transmit 
the meeting through any medium, subject to reasonable requirements of the Chair as to the number, 
placement, and operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. 
Any person intending to make such recording shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and 
exhibits used or referenced at the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the Recording 
Secretary, as they become part of the meeting minutes. 

GARDNER PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE SCHOOL COMMITTEE 

Monday, March 13, 2023, 6:30 PM  

City Council Chambers, City Hall, Gardner, MA 01440 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

A. Call to Order 

B. Open Time for General Public 

C. Recognitions by the Superintendent – 

D. Consent Agenda 
a. Approval of Minutes: February 13, 2023
b. Accept Grant Funds on Grant listing dated March 13. 2023 in the amount of $45,000.00
c. Warrant # 23-32, dated February 9, 2023, in the amount of $128,909.82
d. Warrant # 23-33, dated February 16 2023, in the amount of $988,701.64
e. Warrant # 23-34, dated February 23, 2023, in the amount of $95,771.57
f. Warrant # 23-35, dated March 2, 2023, in the amount of $1,162,988.42
g. Donations -

E. Subcommittee Report
Facilities Subcommittee
Finance Subcommittee
Policy Subcommittee

1



Agenda School Committee Meeting 3/13/2023 

F. Student Advisory Board – GHS, Junior - Amber Cameron         

G. Discussion Items: 
            New Business     
            Item #3493 First Reading of Policies (Information) 

BEDH – Public Participation at School Committee Meetings 
BID –  School Committee Member Compensations 
CA – Administration Goals and Objectives 
CE – School Superintendent 
DH – Bonded Employees and Officers 
DI – Fiscal Accounting and Reporting 
DIE - Audits 

            Item #3494 Second Reading of Policies (Vote Required) 
BDBB – Duties of Vice-Chairperson 
BDFA-E-3 – Conduct of School Council Business 
DBD – Budget Planning 

Item #3495 Field Trip - GHS Senior Class Trip, Hershey PA, April 28 & 29, 2023 (Vote 
Required) 

 Item #3496 Program of Studies (Vote Required) 
            Item #3497 Monty Tech After Dark Program MOU (Vote Required) 
            Item #3498 Kindergarten Registration 2023-2024 (Information) 
            Item #3499 Curriculum Coordinator Update (Information) 
            Item #3500 Grants Administrator Update (Information) 
            Item #3501 Special Education Update (Information)  
            Item #3502 SEPAC Update (Information) 
            Item #3503 MSBA – New Building Project  

H. Communications 

I. Final Comments of School Committee   

J. Executive Session 

K. Adjournment 

2



Briefing  
School Committee Meeting 3/13/2023 

GARDNER PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

 BRIEFING 

ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING OF THE SCHOOL COMMITTEE 
Monday, March 13, 2023, 6:30 PM  

City Council Chambers, City Hall, Gardner, MA 01440 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

A. Call to Order 

B. Open Time for General Public 

C. Recognitions by the Superintendent – 

D. Consent Agenda 
a. Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting, February 13, 2023 – The School Committee
Chair recommends approval of meeting minutes. 
b. Accept Grant Funds on Grant listing dated March 13. 2023 in the amount of $45,000
c. Warrant # 23-32, dated February 9, 2023, in the amount of $128,909.82
d. Warrant # 23-33, dated February 16, 2023, in the amount of $988,701.64
e. Warrant # 23-34, dated February 23, 2023, in the amount of $95,771.57
f. Warrant # 23-35, dated March 2, 2023, in the amount of $1,162,988.42
g. Donations -

E. Subcommittee Report
Facilities Subcommittee
Finance Subcommittee
Policy Subcommittee

F. Student Advisory Board – GHS, Junior - Amber Cameron

G. Discussion Items: 
            New Business     

   Item #3493 First Reading of Policies (Information) 
BEDH – Public Participation at School Committee Meetings 
BID –  School Committee Member Compensations 
CA – Administration Goals and Objectives 
CE – School Superintendent 
DH – Bonded Employees and Officers 
DI – Fiscal Accounting and Reporting 
DIE - Audits 

             Item #3494 Second Reading of Policies (Vote Required) 
BDBB – Duties of Vice-Chairperson 
BDFA-E-3 – Conduct of School Council Business 
DBD – Budget Planning  

3



Briefing  
School Committee Meeting 3/13/2023 

Item #3495 Field Trip - GHS Senior Class Trip, Hershey PA, April 28 & 29, 2023 (Vote 
Required) 

 Item #3496 Program of Studies (Vote Required) 
            Item #3497 Monty Tech After Dark Program MOU (Vote Required) 
            Item #3498 Kindergarten Registration 2023-2024 (Information) 

 Item #3499 Curriculum Coordinator Update (Information) 
            Item #3500 Grants Administrator Update (Information) 
            Item #3501 Special Education Update (Information)  
            Item #3502 SEPAC Update (Information) 
            Item #3503 MSBA – New Building Project  

H. Communications 

I. Final Comments of School Committee   

J. Executive Session  

K. Adjournment 

4



Gardner School Committee 
 Regular Meeting – February 13, 2023 

City Council Chambers, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, Massachusetts 

Members present: Mayor Michael Nicholson, Chairperson 
Jennifer Pelavin, Vice Chairperson 
Rachel Cormier, Secretary 
John LaFreniere, Finance Officer 
Shannon Leighton 
Anne Hurst 
Robert Swartz  

School Personnel Dr. Mark Pellegrino, Superintendent 
present: Terri Hillman, Recording Secretary 

Amber Cameron, GHS Student Representative 
Mark Hawke, Director of Finance and Operations 
Dr. Catherine Goguen, Chief Academic Officer 
Peter McMorrow, Principal, GALT 

Call to Order 
Mayor Nicholson, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. The meeting opened with 
a roll call and the Pledge of Allegiance.  The meeting was broadcast live on Channel 8 (Gardner 
Educational Television Station). 

Open Time for the General Public 
No one from the General Public requested to speak. 

Student Advisory Board 
Mayor Nicholson, Chairperson, requested that if there were no objections Item F. - Student 
Advisory Board - be taken out of order.  There were no objections. 

Amber Cameron, Student Representative, reported on activities at GHS.  The boys’ basketball 
and hockey teams have qualified for States.  There was good attendance at the Early College at 
MWCC.  Currently the students are in Winter Fun Week and have a fund raiser for the Heart 
Fund. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Mayor Nicholson noted that there is a Scribner error on page 5 of the Regular Meeting of 
January 3, 2023.  The correct date of the State of the City Address is January 10, 2023. 

5



Regular Meeting February 13, 2023 
Page 2  

Mr. Swartz moved that the District School Committee vote to approve the Consent Agenda 
as amended. 

• Approval of Minutes of Regular Meeting of January 3, 2023, as amended and
• as recommended by the School Committee Chairperson.
• Approval of Minutes of Special Meeting, State of the City, January 10, 2023.
• Approval of the following Warrants as recommended by the Finance Subcommittee:

• Warrant #23-26 dated 12/29//22 in the amount of $716,762.79
• Warrant #23-27 dated 01/05/23 in the amount of $540,824.81
• Warrant #23-28 dated 01/12/23 in the amount of $249,373.04
• Warrant #23-29 dated 01/19/23 in the amount of $199,146.05
• Warrant #23-30 dated 01/26/23 in the amount of $380,297.00
• Warrant #23-31 dated 02/02/23 in the amount of $1,193,296.54

Seconded by Mrs. Leighton  Vote – so voted. 
Mayor Nicholson, Chairperson, abstained from voting. 

SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 
Finance Subcommittee 
Mr. LaFreniere, Chairperson, said that the Finance Subcommittee met on January 26, 2023.  
Minutes of the meeting were presented. 

The Subcommittee reviewed the Expense Report and Mr. Hawke explained why some accounts 
were in the negative.  These accounts will be covered by existing funds at the end of the year. 

The Watkins Field concession /restroom work is ongoing.  Interior work should wrap up in 
February and final grading and paving will take place in the spring. 

Policy Subcommittee 
Mrs. Hurst, Chairperson, said that the Policy Subcommittee met on February 2, 2023.  Minutes 
of the meeting were presented. 

The following policies were reviewed, and it was determined that no changes were required.  
These policies will be updated as “Reviewed February 2023.” 

• BDBC Duties of Secretary 
• BDBD Duties of Finance Officer 
• BDD School Committee – Superintendent Relationship 
• BDF Advisory Committee to School Committee 

6



Regular Meeting          February 13, 2023 
Page 3 

• BDFA-E-1 School Improvement Plan 
• BEDD Rules of Order 
• BEDG Minutes 
• DBC Budget Deadlines 
• DBJ Transfer Authority 

NEW BUSINESS 
ITEM #3475 – First Reading of Policies 
Mrs. Hurst presented the following policies for a first reading as recommended by the Policy 
Subcommittee: 

• BDBB Duties of Vice Chairperson 
• BDFA-E-3 Conduct of School Council Business 
• DBD Budget Planning 

Item #3476 – Program of Studies 
The Program of Studies was presented for information.  It will be voted on at the March 2023 
School Committee meeting. 

Item #3477 – School Improvement Plan – GALT 
Mr. Peter McMorrow, Principal of GALT, presented the School Improvement Plan for GALT 
Academy.  GALT is now in its new location on Elm Street.  This new location has given a great 
opportunity to reset the climate, culture, and routine for the school and the students.   

He presented MTSS SEL updates with emphasis focused on attendance, MTSS Academic 
updates, and work with MWCC on Gateway to College.  They are also focused on Equity and 
Parent/Community Engagement and are working to expand the Parent Council. 

Item #3478 – 2023-2024 School Choice Acceptance 
Mrs. Pelavin moved that the District School Committee vote to accept School Choice 
students for the 2023-2024 school year. 
Seconded by Mrs. Hurst. Vote – so voted. 
Mayor Nicholson abstained from voting. 

Item #3479 – 2022-2023 School Committee Schedule of Meetings 
Mrs. Pelavin moved that the District School Committee vote to approve the amended 
schedule of School Committee meetings for 2022-2023 based on a start time of 6:30 p.m. as 
of February 13, 2023. 
Seconded by Mr. LaFreniere.      Vote – so voted. 
Mayor Nicholson abstained from voting. 

7



Regular Meeting          February 13, 2023 
Page 4  

Item #3480 – 2023-2024 School Committee Schedule of Meetings 

Mrs. Pelavin moved that the District School Committee vote to approve the schedule of 
School Committee meetings for the period September 2023 to June 2024 as presented. 
Seconded by Mrs. Cormier.       Vote – so voted. 
Mayor Nicholson abstained from voting. 

Item #3481 – 2023-2024 Annual School Calendar 
Dr. Goguen presented two options for the start of school for the 2023-2024 school year.  

• Option #1 – August 24-29 - Staff August 30 -    Students 
• Option #2 - August 28-31 -  Staff September 5 - Students 

Parents and staff were surveyed for a preferred calendar option.  Dr. Goguen presented the 
results of the survey.  There were 454 responses – 47.1% for Option 1 and 53.1% for Option 2. 

Mrs. Pelavin moved that the District School Committee vote to approve Option #2 of the 
2023-2024 Annual School Calendar as presented. 
Seconded by Mrs. Leighton.       Vote – so voted. 
Mayor Nicholson abstained from voting. 

Item #3482 – Stop Arm Cameras on Buses 
Mrs. Pelavin presented information on cameras being put on the stop arm of school buses.  The 
cameras would take pictures of drivers that do not stop for school buses, and they would be 
ticketed.  State House Bill H2426 did not make it out of committee last year.  Other school 
committees have passed resolutions to have a similar version of this bill filed and voted on. 

Mr. Swartz moved that the Gardner School Committee vote to ask the State Delegation to 
advocate for a bill or to file a bill similar to H2426 regarding the Stop Arm Camera on 
school buses. 
Seconded by Mrs. Pelavin.       Vote – so voted. 
Mayor Nicholson abstained from voting. 

Item #3483 – Letter of Partnership - “After Dark” Program 
Mr. LaFreniere moved that the District School Committee vote to approve Dr. Pellegrino’s 
letter of December 28, 2022 to join several other school districts in piloting an innovative 
“After Dark” program that will provide more students with access to valuable vocational 
training opportunities.  
Seconded by Mr. Swartz.       Vote – so voted. 
Mayor Nicholson abstained from voting. 

8



Regular Meeting          February 13, 2023 
Page 5 

Item #3484 – 2023-2024 Enrollment for Virtual School 

Mrs. Pelavin moved that the District School Committee vote to cap enrollment for Virtual 
School at 1%.  

Seconded by Mr. Swartz. Vote – so voted. 

Mayor Nicholson abstained from voting. 

Item #3485 – College & Career Readiness Report 
The College & Career Readiness report was included in the members’ packets.  Ms. Melissa 
Paine, College & Career Readiness Program Coordinator, was not present this evening. 

Item #3486 – Curriculum Coordinator Report 
The Curriculum Coordinator’s report was included in the members’ packets.  Dr. Catherine 
Goguen, Chief Academic Officer, was present to answer questions. 

Item #3487 – Director of School Health Services Report 
The School Health Services report was included in the members’ packets.  Ms. Rebecca 
McCaffrey, Director of School Health Services, was not present this evening. 

Item #3488 – ELL Cordinator Report 
The English Language Learners report was included in the members’ packets.  Ms. Lori 
Simpson, ELL Coordinator, was not present this evening. 

Item #3489 – Grants Administrator Report 
The Grants Administrator report was included in the members’ packets.  Ms. Courteny Dunn, 
Grants, Communications & Compliance Manager, was not present this evening. 

Item #3490 – Special Education Report 
The Special Education report was included in the members’ packets.  Ms. Joyce West, Director 
of Pupil Personnel Services, was not present this evening. 

Item #3491 – SEPAC Report 
Mrs. Hurst reported that information on the SEPAC meeting held in January was contained in 
Ms. West’s Special Education Report. 

9



Regular Meeting February 13, 2023 
Page 6 

COMMUNICATIONS 
Dr. Pellegrino congratulated the basketball and hockey teams. 

FINAL COMMENTS 
Mrs. Leighton thanked Mr. McMorrow for his report on GALT Academy. 

Mrs. Pelavin wished everyone a Happy Valentine’s Day. 

Mr. Swartz also wished everyone a Happy Valentine’s Day. 

Mrs. Cormier thanked Mr. McMorrow for his presentation this evening. 

Mayor Nicholson said that the Prospect Street School is going on the market. 

ADJOURNMENT 
Mrs. Pelavin moved to adjourn. 
Seconded by Mr. Swartz.    Vote – so voted. 
Mayor Nicholson abstained from voting.  

The meeting adjourned at 7:15 pm. 

__________________________ 
Rachel Cormier 

            Secretary 

Terri Hillman, Recording Secretary 

10



Community ● Appreciation ● Responsibility ● Excellence 

The Gardner Public School District does not discriminate due to race, color, sex, gender identity, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, disability, age, 
homelessness or limited English proficiency. 

www.gardnerk12.org 70 Waterford Street, Gardner, MA 01440 (978) 632-1000 

Grant Funding for Approval – February 13, 2023 

Grant Title Amount Grant Period Use of Funds 

FC332 Mental and Behavioral 
Health Grant – ADDITIONAL 
FUNDING 

$25,000 (over and above the 
initial $127,500) 

11/30/2022-6/30/2023 The additional funding will be 
used to provide crisis response 
and training for mental health 
staff.  

FC722 School Nutrition 
Equipment Grant 

$20,000 3/1/2023-6/30/2023 The funding will be used to 
purchase a food steamer for the 
Gardner Middle School, enabling 
staff to provide more fresh foods. 

Gardner Public Schools
Courtney Dunn, Grants, Communications & Compliance Manager

11



GARDNER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SYNOPSIS OF WARRANT

WARRANT #:   23-32 WARRANT DATE 02/09/23

Location Office & Gen Supplies Curriculum Dues Athletics IT Utilities Facilities TOTAL
High School $126.50 $135.00 $196.01 $11,343.44 $11,800.95
Middle School $68.98 $171.60 $999.75 $26.47 $1,266.80
Gardner Elementary School $3,242.70 $3,242.70
Elm St. School $0.00
Waterford St. School $0.00
Helen Mae Sauter $0.00

Sub-Total $68.98 $298.10 $1,134.75 $0.00 $0.00 $196.01 $14,612.61 $16,310.45

Location Office Supplies Transport. IT Curriculum Prof Serv Prof. Dev. Legal Tuition Assessment Facilities Carryover TOTAL
Special Education $52.69 $59,022.50 $1,877.25 $9,288.00 $180.00 $70,420.44
Administration $166.40 $9,788.30 $248.40 $3,666.00 $8,141.20 $63.62 $22,073.92

Sub-Total $219.09 $59,022.50 $9,788.30 $248.40 $1,877.25 $3,666.00 $17,429.20 $0.00 $180.00 $63.62 $0.00 $92,494.36

Revolving Accounts $1,500.00
Grants $18,605.01
Bonds

Sub-Total $20,105.01 GRAND TOTAL $128,909.82

12



GARDNER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SYNOPSIS OF WARRANT

WARRANT #:   23-33 WARRANT DATE 02/16/23

Location Office & Gen Supplies Dues & Mem Student Activity Athletics IT Utilities Facilities TOTAL
High School $187.20 $1,300.00 $2,993.48 $212.00 $11,740.06 $26,973.64 $43,406.38
Middle School $14,557.40 $21,306.78 $35,864.18
Gardner Elementary School $12,134.59 $33,123.68 $45,258.27
Elm St. School $79.53 $6,486.43 $6,565.96
Helen Mae Sauter $3,470.21 $1,607.87 $5,078.08

Sub-Total $187.20 $1,300.00 $2,993.48 $212.00 $0.00 $41,981.79 $89,498.40 $136,172.87

Location Office Supplies Transport. IT Curriculum Prof Serv Prof. Dev. Legal Tuition Utilities Facilities Carryover TOTAL
Special Education $2,295.00 $467.50 $21,073.20 $23,835.70
Administration $1,090.67 ######## $18,054.99 $29,528.38

Sub-Total $0.00 $2,295.00 $1,090.67 $0.00 $467.50 $0.00 $0.00 $21,073.20 ######## $18,054.99 $0.00 $53,364.08

Revolving Accounts $3,207.24
Grants $36,339.51
Watkins Field $344,135.75
Bonds $415,482.19

Sub-Total $799,164.69 GRAND TOTAL $988,701.64

13



GARDNER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SYNOPSIS OF WARRANT

WARRANT #:   23-34 WARRANT DATE 02/23/23

Location Office & Gen Supplies Curriculum Nurse Athletics IT Utilities Facilities TOTAL
High School $1,026.14 $995.00 $3,080.64 $2,695.84 $7,797.62
Middle School $60.45 $1,668.05 $4,573.88 $6,302.38
Gardner Elementary School $1,999.50 $3,097.34 $5,121.25 $10,218.09
Elm St. School $580.99 $580.99
Helen Mae Sauter $405.50 $405.50

Sub-Total $3,025.64 $995.00 $60.45 $0.00 $7,846.03 $0.00 $13,377.46 $25,304.58

Location Office Supplies Transport. IT Curriculum Prof Serv Prof. Dev. Legal Tuition Nurse Facilities Carryover TOTAL
Special Education $81.12 $10,035.00 $1,142.07 $2,313.10 $7,799.60 $21,370.89
Administration $39.43 $1,540.61 $7,688.91 $9,268.95

Sub-Total $120.55 $10,035.00 $2,682.68 $0.00 $2,313.10 $0.00 $0.00 $7,799.60 $0.00 $7,688.91 $0.00 $30,639.84

Revolving Accounts $4,855.00
Grants $21,404.65
Bonds $13,567.50

Sub-Total $39,827.15 GRAND TOTAL $95,771.57

14



GARDNER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SYNOPSIS OF WARRANT

WARRANT #:   23-35 WARRANT DATE 03/02/23

Location Office & Gen Supplies Curriculum Assessment Athletics IT Utilities Facilities TOTAL
High School $1,992.60 $1,883.38 $998.00 $7,405.33 $266.88 $1,518.64 $14,064.83
Middle School $113.88 $113.88
Gardner Elementary School $114.40 $2,489.97 $2,604.37
Elm St. School $0.00
Waterford St. School $0.00
Helen Mae Sauter $0.00

Sub-Total $2,107.00 $1,997.26 $998.00 $7,405.33 $0.00 $266.88 $4,008.61 $16,783.08

Location Office Supplies Transport. IT Curriculum Prof Serv Prof. Dev. Legal Tuition Utilities Facilities Carryover TOTAL
Special Education $8,685.00 $10,250.25 $58,059.20 $76,994.45
Administration $59,130.00 $5,824.81 $3,382.32 $4,026.00 $926.67 $5,815.91 $79,105.71

Sub-Total $0.00 $67,815.00 $5,824.81 $3,382.32 $10,250.25 $0.00 $4,026.00 $58,059.20 $926.67 $5,815.91 $0.00 $156,100.16

Revolving Accounts $1,931.00
Grants $82,548.19
Replenish Student Act Acct $8,363.54
Bonds $897,262.45

Sub-Total $990,105.18 GRAND TOTAL $1,162,988.42

15



70 Waterford Street 
Gardner, MA 01440 

Facilities Sub-Committee Meeting 
 Minutes 

Thursday, February 9, 2023 

PRESENT:  Robert J. Swartz, Chair, Jennifer Pelavin 

REGRETS: John LaFreniere 

In Attendance: Mark Pellegrino, Superintendent, Mark Hawke, Director of 
Operations & Finance, Wayne Anderson, Director of Maintenance. 

Approval of December 8, 2022, minutes will be done during April’s meeting. 

WATKINS FIELD – Concession/Rest Rooms Building.  The chair made a visit 
during the work day, contractor was installing wallboard. Installing wallboard is a 
good sign the project is nearing completion. 

GES- Electronic Sign: Mr. Anderson recently received the sign manual, ID code 
and instruction for placing sign into operation. Hopefully the sign will be in 
operation by the time of the next meeting. 

We had two pipe bursts one in Buillding A and the other in Building C. On one the 
fitting connection let go and on the other the pipe split from cold weather due to an 
open window. 

Mr. Anderson, the maintenance team, and the snowplowing contractor received 
accolades for a job well done for the recent snow/ice storm. 

16



GHS- Landry Auditorium- HVAC. A contract has been awarded to study the 
upgrade of the HVAC system for the Auditorium. Cost estimates are due shortly.  
Depending on funding the project could extend to the cafeteria and library.  

Next meeting April 13, 2023. 
Nothing further to discuss a Motion to adjourn was made and seconded. Meeting 
adjourned at 5:25 PM. 

Robert J. Swartz 
Robert J, Swartz 
Facilities Committee Chairman 

17



GARDNER PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

70 Waterford Street, Gardner, MA 01440 
Finance Sub-Committee Meeting 

Tuesday, March 7, 2023 at 5:00pm 

Minutes 

Members Present: Mrs. Pelavin, Mr. Swartz. Mr. LaFreniere 

Members Absent: 

Others Present: Mr. Mark Hawke, Director of Finance & Operations 

Mr. LaFreniere called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

A motion was made by Mr. Swartz and seconded by Mrs. Pelavin to approve the minutes of the 
January 26, 2023 Finance Subcommittee meeting.  So voted. 

Expense Report Review: 

The Committee reviewed the Expense Report.  Mr. Hawke noted the following: 

At GHS, GMS and GES the sub teacher lines are still running in the negative.  These will be made 
up from available funds at the end of the year. 

At GES the RBT line is in the negative, but this is just a timing issue and will be fixed next 
month.  The GES electric account shows a negative, but this is just due to the encumbrance and 
not actual spent.  The Solid Waste number came in higher than anticipated and will be made up 
from available funds at the end of the year. 

Two expenses stick out in the District section, Out Of District (OOD) shows a negative, at this 
point in time, however this is due to the encumbrance and this line is very fluid all year long and 
is subject to change monthly.  Legal Expense for Special Education, as foretold at the last meeting, 
is in the negative due to all of the OOD activity. 

Other questions were posed and answered. 

The Revolving Funds Summary Report was presented for review.   Mr. Hawke noted that we will 
spend more school choice funds than we receive this year.  This was intentional in order to 
complete some one time projects.  Athletics is off, but it is a timing issue as we just sent out the 
bills to the area schools for ice time.  The Circuit Breaker, Food Service, Pre-k, Building Use and 
Extended Day funds are all healthy. 

Mr. Swartz inquired as to the source of income for the Building Use Fund.  Mr. Hawke stated that 
the Commonwealth paid to hold vaccine clinics at GHS and a martial arts show was held at GHS. 
Other questions were posed and answered. 

18



Mr. Swartz asked for the Transfer Report and it was emailed to all committee members prior to 
the meeting. 

Projects Update: 

Watkins Field concession/restroom work is ongoing and almost complete.  No other project 
updates. 

New Business: 

The Pre-school Tuition rates were reviewed.  The rates increased last year.  The rates are in line 
with area schools.   

A motion was made by Mrs. Pelavin and seconded by Mr. Swartz to keep the rates the same.  So 
voted. 

Upcoming Vendor Contracts were discussed.  Moura’s Cleaning Service and Whitson’s Food 
Service contracts will be put out to bid in the coming months.  The committee did not have an 
issue with either vendor. 

Director’s budget request sheets will be emailed to the Committee members for review. 

The next meeting will be April 4, 2023 at 5pm. 

The meeting adjourned at 5:41 p.m. 

19



GARDNER PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
 

Policy Subcommittee  
Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, March 2, 2023 
3:00 PM 

Superintendent’s Conference Room 
70 Waterford Street, Gardner, MA  01440 

 

In Attendance:    Mrs. Anne Hurst, Chair; Mrs. Rachel Cormier, Member; Mrs. Shannon Ward-
Leighton, Member 

Absent:   

Also in Attendance:  Dr. Catherine Goguen, Chief Academic Officer; Ms. Courtney Dunn, 
Grants, Communications, & Compliance Coordinator; Mr. Mark Hawke, Director of Finance and 
Operations; Ms. Brenda Smith, Assistant to the Superintendent 
 
Mrs. Hurst called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

A motion was made by Mrs. Cormier and seconded by Mrs. Ward-Leighton to approve the 
minutes of the February 2, 2023 Policy Meeting.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
The following policies were reviewed and determined that no changes were required.  Therefore, 
the policies will be updated as “Reviewed March, 2023”: 

• BHC – School Committee – Staff Communications 
• BIBA – School Committee Conferences, Conventions, and Workshops 
• CH – Policy Implementation 
• DGA – Authorized Signatures 

Policy BEDH – Public Participation at School Committee Meetings was reviewed and discussed.  
The Subcommittee recommended that the policy title be changed from “Public Participation at 
School Committee Meetings” to “Public Comment at School Committee Meetings” to reflect 
the Massachusetts Association of School Committees (MASC) recommended Policy BEDH title.  
A motion was made by Mrs. Cormier and seconded by Mrs. Ward-Leighton to send Policy 
BEDH with the recommended changes to the March full School Committee Meeting for a first 
read.  The motion passed unanimously.     

Policy BID – School Committee Member Compensation was reviewed and discussed.  Dr. 
Goguen presented updates to legal references and the addition of language from the MASC 
policy BID that provides more detailed guidance regarding compensation of School Committee 
Members.  A motion was made by Mrs. Cormier and seconded by Mrs. Ward-Leighton to send 
policy BID with the recommended changes to the March full School Committee Meeting for a 
first read.  The motion passed unanimously. 

20



Policy CA – Administration Goals and Objectives was reviewed and discussed.  Dr. Goguen 
presented updates to the policy including the removal of “and Objectives” from the title to match 
the MASC Policy CA title, and removal of all current policy language replaced with the 
language from the MASC recommended Policy CA.  She also presented updates to legal 
references.  A motion was made by Mrs. Ward-Leighton and seconded by Mrs. Cormier to send 
Policy CA with the recommended changes to the March full School Committee Meeting for a 
first read.  The motion passed unanimously. 

Policy CE – School Superintendent was reviewed and discussed.  Dr. Goguen stated that the 
MASC file name for this policy is “CB”.  She presented updates to this policy including a file 
name change to “CB” to match the MASC recommended policy, and removal of all current 
policy language replaced with the language from the MASC recommended Policy CA.  A 
motion was made by Mrs. Cormier and seconded by Mrs. Ward-Leighton to send Policy CE with 
the recommended changes to the March full School Committee Meeting for a first read.  The 
motion passed unanimously. 

Policy CFA – School Building Administrative Coverage was reviewed and discussed.  Dr. 
Goguen stated that the MASC does not have a recommended policy for this topic and that as 
currently written is very procedural in nature.  The Subcommittee recommended updated 
language for the policy and also recommended that the District create a procedure document to 
accompany the policy for specific guidance on providing needed coverage to buildings.  The 
Subcommittee asked that this policy be added to the April agenda with the recommended 
changes for further review and discussion. 

Policy DH – Bonded Employees and Officers was reviewed and discussed.  Dr. Goguen 
presented updates to legal references.  A motion was made by Mrs. Ward-Leighton and seconded 
by Mrs. Cormier to send Policy DH with the recommended changes to the March full School 
Committee Meeting for a first read.  The motion passed unanimously. 

Policy DI – Bonded Employees and Officers was reviewed and discussed.  Dr. Goguen presented 
updates to the policy including the addition of language from the MASC recommended Policy 
DI regarding responsibility for receiving and accounting for all funds of the District.  She also 
presented updates to legal references.   A motion was made by Mrs. Ward-Leighton and 
seconded by Mrs. Cormier to send Policy DI with the recommended changes to the March full 
School Committee Meeting for a first read.  The motion passed unanimously. 

Policy DIE – Audits was reviewed and discussed.  Mr. Hawke recommended the addition of 
language from the MASC recommended Policy DIE regarding the frequency and compliance of 
audits, and the ability of the School Committee to request audits at their discretion.  He also 
presented updates to legal references.  A motion was made by Mrs. Cormier and seconded by 
Mrs. Ward-Leighton to send Policy DIE with the recommended changes to the March full 
School Committee Meeting for a first read.  The motion passed unanimously. 

The next Policy Subcommittee meeting will occur on Tuesday, April 4, 2023 at 3:00 p.m. in the 
Superintendent’s Conference Room.   

A motion was made by Mrs. Cormier and seconded by Mrs. Ward-Leighton to adjourn the 
meeting.  The motion passed unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 3:34 p.m. 

21



File:  BEDH 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION COMMENT AT SCHOOL COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

All regular and special meetings of the School Committee shall be open to the public. Executive 
sessions will be held only as prescribed by the Statutes of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

The School Committee desires individuals to attend its meetings so that they may become better 
acquainted with the operations and the programs of our local public schools. In addition, the 
Committee would like the opportunity to hear public comment. 

Public comment is not a discussion, debate, or dialogue between individuals and the School 
Committee. It is an individual's opportunity to express an opinion on issues within the School 
Committee's authority. 

To ensure the ability of the School Committee to conduct the District's business in an orderly 
manner, the following rules and procedures are adopted: 

1. At the start of each regularly scheduled School Committee meeting, individuals will
sign in for an opportunity to speak during public comment. The public comment
segment shall not exceed 15 minutes. All speakers are encouraged to present their
remarks in a respectful manner.

2. Speakers will be allowed up to three (3) minutes to present their material and must
begin their comments by stating their name and city/town. The presiding Chair may
permit extension of this time limit, in extenuating circumstances.

3. Topics for discussion should be limited to those items within the School Committee's
scope of authority. The authority of the School Committee primarily concerns the
review and approval of the budget of the district's public schools, the performance of
the Superintendent, and the educational goals and policies of the district's public
schools. Comments and complaints regarding school personnel (apart from the
Superintendent) or students are generally prohibited unless those comments and
complaints concern matters within the scope of School Committee authority.

4. The Chair of the meeting, after a warning, reserves the right to terminate speech
which is not constitutionally protected because it constitutes true threats that are
likely to provoke a violent reaction and cause a breach of the peace, or incitement to
imminent lawless conduct, or contains obscenities.

5. Written comments longer than three (3) minutes may be presented to the presiding
Chair before or after the meeting. All remarks will be addressed through the Chair of
the meeting. Comments made during the public comment portion of the meeting do
not necessarily reflect the views or positions of the Gardner School Committee.

6. Sign up instructions will be provided for those who wish to participate in Public
Comment.

Item# 3493

22



File:  BEDH 

LEGAL REFS.:  M.G.L. c. 30A: 18-25 
CROSS REFS:  BE, SCHOOL COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

BEC, EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 
BEDA, NOTIFICATION OF SCHOOL COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

SOURCE:  MASC 

[Revised: April 2020] 
[ReviewedRevised: March 2023] 

23

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII/Chapter30a/section18
https://z2policy.ctspublish.com/masc/
https://z2policy.ctspublish.com/masc/
https://z2policy.ctspublish.com/masc/


File:  BID 

SCHOOL COMMITTEE MEMBER COMPENSATION 

The School Committee shall serve without compensation, except by a majority vote of the 
city council, the amount of such compensation to be set by the city. The School Committee 
shall serve without compensation, except that a member of a School Committeemay be 
compensated for their services by a majority vote of the city council; the amount of such 
compensation, in each case, to be set by the City.  No member of the School Committee 
shall be eligible to the position of teacher, or Superintendent of public schools therein, or 
in any union school or superintendency union or district in which the City participates. 

In addition, no member of the School Committee, except the mayor, shall, while a member 
thereof, hold any other office or positions in the school department, the salary or 
compensation of which, is payable out of the city treasury. 

Upon submitting vouchers and supporting bills for expenses incurred in carrying out 
specific services previously authorized by the Committee, members may be reimbursed 
from school funds. 

Reimbursable expenses may include the cost of attendance at conferences of School 
Committee associations and other professional meetings or visitations when such 
attendance and expense payment has had prior School Committee approval. 

SOURCE:  MASC 
LEGAL REFS.: M.G.L. 40:5; 71:52 
CROSS REF.:  BIBA, School Committee Conferences, Conventions, and Workshops 
 [Reference: General Laws of Massachusetts, Chapter 71 Section 52, Chapter 43 Section 
32; BIBA School Committee Conference Convention and Workshops; DKC, Expense 
Reimbursements] 

[Reviewed: January 2002] 
[Reviewed April 2012] 
[Revised May: 2018] 
[Revised: April 2020] 
[Revised: 2023] 

24

http://www.malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter40/Section5
http://www.malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXII/Chapter71/Section52
https://z2policy.ctspublish.com/masc/


File:  CA 

ADMINISTRATION GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

We believe that in order to provide the type of educational program necessary to meet the needs 
of all the students of Gardner, the School Committee must rely on a Superintendent who should 
be given the primary responsibility to provide the professional visionary leadership the school 
district demands. 

The School Committee, Superintendent, and his/her administrative team have the primary 
responsibility for designing an organization that can effectively achieve the purposes for which the 
school system was organized. 

In the educational organization the administrative staff is expected, within the framework of 
School Committee decisions, to provide the school district employees with the time, materials, 
resources, working conditions, and inspiration that they need to fulfill their obligations. 

The School Committee intends to employ qualified personnel to administer the school district 
efficiently and to require the Superintendent to organize the administration in a manner that will 
make clear the functions of each position and the relationships among them. 
The Superintendent will establish clear lines of communication, both vertically and horizontally, 
and will form any staff councils or committees needed to provide for efficient conduct of school 
business.  In order to engage in this process in an orderly and effective fashion, each individual 
and group will be given particular, clear-cut responsibilities.  The Superintendent will establish 
channels so that the recommendations and decisions of each group can be heard and reviewed by 
the chief administrative officer concerned, and, where appropriate, by the Superintendent and 
School Committee. 
The organization and administration of the schools will balance responsibility with 
commensurate authority, subject to the reserved legal powers of the School Committee.  This 
means that a staff member, when assigned a responsibility or a position, will be given the 
authority to make the decisions necessary to perform the assigned tasks. 
For the schools to operate effectively, each administrative officer will be responsible and 
accountable for making a plan of development for all staff assigned to their area of operation. 

LEGAL REFS.:  M.G.L. 71:41, 71:42 

SOURCE: MASC - Updated 2022 

[Revised: March 2002] 
[Revised: February 2019] 
[Revised: 2023] 

25

http://www.malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXII/Chapter71/section41
http://www.malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXII/Chapter71/section42


File:  CBCE 

SCHOOL SUPERINTENDENT 

The administration of the school system in all of its aspects shall be delegated to the 
superintendent, who shall carry out his/her administrative functions in accord and with the policies 
adopted by the School Committee and responsibilities required by Massachusetts General Laws 
and applicable federal laws. The execution of all decisions made by the School Committee 
concerning the internal operation of the school system shall be delegated to the Superintendent. 

The Committee shall employ a Superintendent of Schools and fix their compensation.  The 
Superintendent shall act in accordance with Mass. General Laws and shall perform such other 
duties consistent with this section as the Committee may determine.  They shall also prepare 
such reports as may be required by the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education and 
shall submit materials for the Committee's annual report to the Mayor in sufficient time for 
printing in the annual report. 

SOURCE:  MASC - Updated 2022 

LEGAL REFS:  M.G.L. 71:59, 72:3 

[Revised: March 2002] 
[Reviewed: January 2006] 
[Revised: February 2019] 
[Revised: 2023] 

26

http://www.malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXII/Chapter71/Section59
http://www.malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXII/Chapter72/Section3


File:  DH 

BONDED EMPLOYEES AND OFFICERS 

Each employee of the school system who is assigned the responsibility of receiving and/or 
dispensing school funds will be bonded individually or covered by a blanket bond.  The cost of the 
bond will be paid by the city. 

SOURCE:  MASC Updated 2022 

[Reference: M.G.L. 40:5; 41:109A; 71:47] 

[Adoption: October 1998] 
[Reviewed: November 2003] 
[Reviewed: February 2019] 
[Reviewed: December 2021] 
[Revised: 2023] 

27



File:  DI 

FISCAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING 

The superintendent will be ultimately responsible for receiving and properly accounting for all 
funds of the school system. This responsibility may be delegated to the school business 
administrator. The Superintendent will be ultimately responsible for receiving and properly 
accounting for all funds of the school district, maintaining effective internal controls so as to assure 
the effectiveness and efficiency of operations; adequate safeguarding of property; assurance of 
expenditures in accordance with programs under which revenues are received; and compliance 
with applicable laws and regulations. 

The accounting system used will conform to state requirements and to sound business practices. 
The system will provide for the appropriate separation of accounts, funds, and special monies. 

The school committee will receive monthly financial statements from the superintendent showing 
the financial condition of the school department.  Such other financial statements as may be 
determined necessary by either the committee or the administration will be presented as deemed 
necessary. 

SOURCE: MASC Updated 2022 
LEGAL REF.:  MGL Ch. 44:38 

603 CMR 10:00 
2 CFR 200.303 

CROSS REFS:  DBJ Budget Transfer Authority 
DIE Audits [Reference: Board of Education 603 CMR 10:00] 

[Adopted: October 1998] 
[Revised: June 2002] 
[Reviewed: February 2019] 
[Reviewed: December 2021] 
[Revised: 2023] 

28

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/section38
http://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/603cmr10.html
https://z2policy.ctspublish.com/masc/
https://z2policy.ctspublish.com/masc/


 
 

File:  DIE 

AUDITS 
 
As a department of the City, an audit of the school department's accounts shall be conducted 
annually by external auditors within nine months of the close of the fiscal year. This review shall 
be conducted in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles and the Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the U. S. Comptroller General.An audit of the school department’s 
accounts shall be conducted annually.  In addition, the school committee may request a private 
audit of the school system’s accounts at its discretion. 
 
Upon completion of the external audit, the Superintendent will share the resulting documentation 
with the Committee.  The School Committee will consider the recommendations made by the 
auditor for maintaining an efficient system for recording and safeguarding the school department’s 
assets. 
 
Additionally, the district is also subject to the following: 
 

• End of Year Financial Compliance Report: Every Massachusetts school district must 
submit the results of this report to the Department. This End of Year report must be 
submitted to the Department on or before September 30 each year. 

• Government Accounting Standards Board 34: The District is covered in these government 
financial statements of revenue and expenditures of the municipality. 

• Federal grant audits: As a district that spends about thresholds required, the district is 
subject to the Single Audit Act. 

• Student Activity Account: As required by state law, student activity accounts are audited 
annually. For accounts that exceed $25,000, the School Committee shall consider an audit 
conducted by an outside firm every three years 
 

The Committee may request an additional audit of the school district's accounts at its discretion 
 
 
SOURCE: MASC Updated 2022 
LEGAL REF:  M.G.L. 44:38-40; 71:47; 72:3 
CROSS REFS:   DI, Fiscal Accounting and Reporting 

JJF, Student Activity Accounts 
 
[Adopted: October 1998] 
[Reviewed: October 2002] 
[Reviewed: February 2019] 
[Reviewed: March 2022] 
[Revised: 2023] 
 

29

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleVII/Chapter44/section38
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXII/Chapter71/section47
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleXII/Chapter72/section3
https://z2policy.ctspublish.com/masc/
https://z2policy.ctspublish.com/masc/


File: BDBB 

DUTIES OF VICE-CHAIRPERSON 

The vice-chairperson shall preside at all meetings whenever the chairperson is absent, or when 
requested to take the chair by the chairperson.  The vice-chairperson shall perform all the duties 
of the chairperson in the absence of the chairperson. 

When the vice chairperson is elected, he/shethe vice chairperson shall solicit written interest from 
all school committee members relative to all non-elected subcommittees.  He/sheThe vice 
chairperson shall then appoint, prior to the February meeting, members to the following 
subcommittees and Athletic Council: 

1. Facilities
2. Policy
3. Technology
4. GEA Negotiations
5. 1717 Negotiations
6. ESP Negotiations
7. Coaches’ Negotiations
8. Superintendent Evaluation
9. Transportation

Additional subcommittees may be named on an ad hoc basis as required. School Committee 
members shall be appointed thereto by the Vice-Chairperson of the School Committee. 

The Vice-Chairperson of the School Committee shall appoint the chairperson of each standing and 
ad hoc subcommittee. 

[Revised: October 2003] 
[Revised: March 2008] 
[Reviewed: April 2017] 
[Reviewed: November 2017] 
[Reviewed: September 2020] 
[Revised: 2023] 

Item# 3494

30



File:  BDFA -E-3 

CONDUCT OF SCHOOL COUNCILS BUSINESS 

The principal shall, by law, serve as co-chair of the council.  The second co-chair will be elected 
annually by the council members at the council’s first meeting of the school year.  The co-chairs 
will be responsible for the preparation of the agenda for the council meetings. 

The school council shall meet at least once monthly during the school year.  Meetings will be held 
outside of school hours.  At its first meeting of the school year, the council will set its calendar of 
regular meetings for the year.  Where circumstances warrant, the council may choose to call 
additional meetings. 

Consensus shall be used by school councils as the primary method to resolve issues and to 
formulate recommendations.  Votes by majority may be taken at the discretion of the principal and 
Roberts Rules of Order shall prevail if there are questions of procedure. 

All meetings of the school council shall conform to the Open Meeting Law, Chapter 30A, Sections 
18-25, which stipulate that all meetings be open to the public, that meetings be posted at least 48 
hours in advance, and that minutes of the meeting shall be maintained as required.  The scope of 
the school council does not require, and therefore, does not qualify for, executive session. 

The superintendent shall receive agendas and minutes of all school council meetings.  The 
superintendent shall provide copies of these materials to members of the school committee for 
information. 

The School Committee believes that the school is the key unit for educational improvement and 
change and that successful school improvement is best accomplished through a school-based 
decision-making process. By involving those directly affected by any action or decision of the 
school council in the process of determining that action or decision, it helps to strengthen the 
commitment to those decisions by those most affected by its implementation. 
Under this policy, the Principal shall have primary responsibility for the management of the 
school. Decisions which are made at the school level must be aligned with the budget, policies, 
curriculum, and long-range and short-range goals adopted by the School Committee. In addition, 
decisions must comply with any state and federal laws and regulations and with any negotiated 
agreements of the school. 

As enacted by the state legislature in the Education Reform Act of 1993, a school council shall 
be established in each school to advise the Principal in specific areas of school operation. The 
Principal, except as specifically defined in the law, shall have the responsibility for defining the 
composition of and forming the group pursuant to a representative process approved by the 
Superintendent and School Committee. 
The Principal shall, by law, serve as co-chair of the council. The second co-chair will be elected 
annually by the council members at its first meeting of the school year subsequent to the 
elections of new council members. The co-chairs will be responsible for the preparation of the 
agenda for the council meetings. 

31



File:  BDFA -E-3 

The school council shall meet at least once monthly during the school year. Meetings will be 
held outside of school hours. 
School councils shall use consensus as the primary method to resolve issues and to formulate 
recommendations. Votes by majority may be taken at the discretion of the Principal and Robert's 
Rules of Order. 

All meetings of the school council shall conform to the Open Meeting Law. The scope of the 
school council does not require, and therefore does not qualify for, executive session. 
The Superintendent shall receive agendas and minutes of all school council meetings. The 
Superintendent shall provide copies of these materials to members of the School Committee 
upon request. 

The following guidelines define the role of the school council: The School Council shall meet 
regularly with the Principal of the school and shall assist in: 

1. Adoption of educational goals for the school that are consistent with state and local
policies and standards. 
2. Identification of the educational needs of the students attending the school.
3. Review of the school building budget.
4. Formulation of a school improvement plan that may be implemented only after review
and approval by the Superintendent. 

Source:  MASC – Consolidated and Updated 2022 

[Reference: M.G.L. Chapter 71:38Q,, Section 59C, Chapter 30A, Sections 18-25] 
[Approved: March 1999] 
[Reviewed: December 2001] 
[Revised: April 2005] 
[Revised: November 2011] 
[Reviewed: November 2017] 
[Revised: December 2020] 
[Revised: 2023] 

32



File: DBD 

BUDGET PLANNING 

A significant portion of income for the operation of the public school system is derived from local 
property taxes.  The school committee will attempt to protect the valid interest of the taxpayers. 
However, the first priority in the development of an annual budget will be the educational welfare 
of the children in our schools. 

Budget decisions reflect the attitude and philosophy of those charged with the responsibility for 
educational decision-making.  Therefore, a sound budget development process must be established 
to ensure that the annual operating budget accurately reflects the goals and objectives of the 
Gardner Public School System. 

In the budget planning process for the school system, the school committee will strive to: 

1. Engage in thorough advance planning, with staff and community involvement, in order to
develop budgets and guide expenditures in a manner that will achieve the greatest educational
returns and contributions to the educational program in relationship to dollars expended.

2. Establish levels of funding that will provide high quality education for all our students.

3. Use the best available techniques for budget development and management.

The superintendent will have overall responsibility for budget preparation, including the 
construction of, and adherence to, a budget calendar. 

[Adopted: October 1998] 
[Reviewed: December 2003] 
[Reviewed: May 2008] 
[Reviewed: February 2019] 
[Reviewed: December 2021] 
[Reviewed: 20232] 

33



Item# 3495

34



2023-2024 Program of Study Edits:

● Cover Page- Changed 2022-2023 to 2023-2024
● Changed Foreign Language to World Language in Table of contents
● Changed page numbers in table of contents to correspond with new page alignments
● Pg 15 - removed “Some MWCC and online classes are designated as Honors”
● Pg 15 remove Honors Statistics
● Page 16 added AP European History take off AP MWHist,
● Take off AP Music Theory
● Removed community service on pg 18 as a grad requirement-added the following:
● Pg 18 - Under Successful completion of MCAS, added another box which says:

○ Community Service Experience:  Seniors will be required to participate in a
community service experience, which will be organized by the high school.
These projects are designed to give students an authentic experience of giving
back to their community.

● Elective change to 30 credits
● Page 19 update Promoted to grade 10-removed 5 credits in English and changed math

course to Algebra 1
● Fixed wording on page 23
● Changed Ceramics I to Ceramics (pg 28)
● Pg 32 removed fundamental of writing
● Removed Science Fiction Literature and Film pg 32
● Pg 32 Added new Course:
ULTIMATE HORROR FICTION: Like the original Horror Fiction, this course
explores the fantastic, the magical, the supernatural, and the horrific, but on a more
mature level. Topics include psychological horror, horror inspired by real events,
and the translation of horror from page to screen, all of which help us examine the
ways that horror acts as a funhouse mirror for the world.
● Pg 33 removed Lit of Animation
● Pg. 33 added a New English Elective Course:

English Elective Grades 8 - 12  college prep 2.5 credits
Sports Writing: The sports world features diverse personalities, distinct narratives and
intersects with numerous other disciplines. This semester-long course explores the world of
sports through media. Students will use sports as the vehicle to discuss and explore these
narratives through print, digital and social media.

● Pg 34 change foreign language to world language
● Pg 39 removed table and paragraph above
● added Topics in Math to Math Section:

Topics in Math Grades 11-12 / college prep level  5 credits

Item# 3496

35



Topics in Math:
This course explores a number of important ideas and practical applications in
contemporary mathematics. Required topics include: problem solving strategies;
measurement and the metric system; set theory; equations and inequalities; graphing and
linear functions: consumer applications such as interest, annuities and present value; and
basic statistics. Teachers will select one or two additional topics (as time permits), such as,
history of math, voting and apportionment, logic, probability, or geometry.

● Pg 40 removed math enrichment with Alg 2 added math enrichment credit to Geometry:
Moved Math enrichment after Geometry- changed Algebra II to Geometry in description

● Pg 41 added honors before Pre-Calculus
● Removed Honors Statistics and Probability pg 41
● Pg 42 added 11th and 12th grade to Statistics and Probability
● Pg 43 removed Foundations of math
● Pg 45 Added new Course:

HISTORY OF HIP HOP & RAP: This semester class involves a look at the historical roots of the genre, the
cultural differences between different styles (East v West, NYC,  "Gangster Rap" v Native Tongues, etc) as
well as the "reasons"/inspirations behind songs and influences on modern day. We will be looking at the music
of artists such as Grandmaster Flash, Tupac Shakur, Notorious BIG, Public Enemy, Outkast, Run D.M.C,
Beastie Boys, Ice Cube, Ice T, Missy Elliot, Nas, Jay-Z, Wu-Tang Clan, Eminem, Kendrick Lamar, and many
more.  This class will involve research and writing, critical thinking and problem solving.

● Pg 46 removed AP music theory
● Pg 47 removed science table
● removed Adv Chem and Adv Physics pg.48 and 49
● Pg 54 removed Introduction to Biotechnology
● Pg 54 - removed Diseases in the Human Body
● removed Zoology
● Pg 56 - removed AP World History
● Take off “topics of” pg 58 for psychology and sociology
● Added a Business section with financial lit, intro to business and entrepreneurship

added these 2 new college business courses:
BSAD 2030: Principles of Management
This is an introductory course in basic management concepts and practices. This course
covers principles and techniques as they relate to planning, organizing, leading and
controlling business enterprises.

BSAD 2040: Fundamentals of Marketing
This course discusses the role of marketing in our economic and social structure. It includes
the planning, distribution, pricing and promotion of goods and services to consumer and
industrial markets in the context of internal activities of the firm and environmental forces.

36



● Pg 66 added 3 new courses under Additional courses:
AUT 110. Introduction to Automotive Technology: Introduction to Automotive Technology
examines the role and opportunities of the automotive service professional in today’s automotive
industry. Shop environment, tools/equipment, and personal safety are emphasized. Students will
experience typical job-entry service skills and vehicle maintenance inspections. The necessary
resources providing service information are examined. An introduction of vehicle operation and
support systems will be presented. This course provides the background information required to
continue in the automotive technology program.  This is a dual credit course through Mount
Wachusett Community College.  This course is taught off campus.  Classes will be held at the
MWCC Autotech facility (42 Linus Allain Ave, Gardner).  Upon successful completion of this
course students will earn 5 high school credits towards graduation and 4.5 college credits
towards their automotive technician certification/degree.

AUT 123. Electrical Systems I.: This course covers the fundamentals of electricity and magnetism,
along with exploring the relationship of volts, ohms, and amps. The course will apply these two series,
parallel, and series-parallel circuits. Semiconductor components such as diodes and transistors will be
explored. Students will learn to use digital volt-ohm meters and oscilloscopes. Battery design and testing
will be explored along with starting and charging systems. Prerequisites: ENG 098, FYE 101, MAT 092
(or corequisite), RDG 098, or placement; AUT 110 (or corequisite).  This is a dual credit course through
Mount Wachusett Community College.  This course is taught off campus.  Classes will be held at the
MWCC Autotech facility (42 Linus Allain Ave, Gardner).  Upon successful completion of this course
students will earn 5 high school credits towards graduation and 4.5 college credits towards their
automotive technician certification/degree.

Certified Nurse Assistant Theory and Practicum (CNA Certification) : This course provides
students with the theory and laboratory practice to safely care for clients in healthcare settings
under the guidance and alliance with the states CNA Certification.  This course provides students
the opportunity to learn the nurse assistant theory and skills and provide safe, basic care to
clients in long term care settings.  Combined with successful completion of the theory and
practicum components of the course, these students can safely care for clients in various
healthcare settings.  This is a dual credit course.  This course may be taught on the GHS and/or
MWCC campus.  Successful completion on this course will earn students 5 high school credits to
their diploma and 5 college credits through MWCC.  Students will be eligible to take the CNA
exam upon completion of this course.

● Removed Community and Recreational Skills from pg 67
● Removed whole page 68
● Removed page 63 and added the strat class to page 65 under Additional Course Offerings
● Removed Manufacturing Technology from pg 72
● Pg 74 - changed “dual enrollment” to “Early College”
● Pg 81 - changed “Plus Portal” to PowerSchool and Deb’s email address to Abby’s
● Pg 71 - removed Community Service section

37

http://catalog.mwcc.edu/search/?P=ENG%20098
http://catalog.mwcc.edu/search/?P=FYE%20101
http://catalog.mwcc.edu/search/?P=MAT%20092
http://catalog.mwcc.edu/search/?P=RDG%20098
http://catalog.mwcc.edu/search/?P=AUT%20110


38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



MONTACHUSETT REGIONAL VOCATIONAL TECHNICAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
and 

GARDNER PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Chapter 74 Partnership Program 
Memorandum of Agreement 

The following agreement is entered into between Montachusett Regional Vocational Technical School 
District (MRVTSD), located at 1050 Westminster Street, Fitchburg, Massachusetts and Gardner Public 
Schools (GPS), with administrative offices located at 70 Waterford Street, Gardner, Massachusetts.  This 
agreement was developed in partnership with school officials representing the interests of both parties, 
and will be in effect through the 2024-2025 school year. Thereafter, the agreement will be reviewed by 
Superintendents (or their designees) from both districts, and amended or renewed “as-is” annually. 

MRVTSD is designated as the “Program District” and GPS is partnering with the Program District for the 
purpose of enrolling their students in the following Chapter 74 training programs: 

Carpentry: CIP Code 460201 
Electricity:  CIP Code 460302 

Responsibilities 
In order for the program to be successful, each partner will make significant contributions.  Accordingly, MRVTSD 
and GPS agree to the following: 

MRVTSD will provide: 
● Administrative representation and planning assistance at all meetings of the partnership
● Qualified instructors to teach agreed upon courses
● Orientation sessions for new students and their parents
● Provide bus transportation to GPS students enrolled in the Partnership Program(s), both to/from the

training facility
● Award GPS students a vocational certificate indicating completion of competencies, the total number of

training hours completed, and industry-recognized credentials earned upon successful completion of two
years of the program

● Data such as attendance, course completion rate and average grade to track program outcomes delivered 
at the end of each quarter

● Provide daily lunch
● In year two, provide eligible GPS students the opportunity to participate in cooperative education for

applicable programs as available
● General instructional support for English Language Learners and Special Populations
● All consumable technical materials
● Procurement of consumable technical materials
● Required PPE or other technical program clothing or materials to all students as needed to participate
● Administration of program staff compensation
● General financial management of program

GPS will provide: 
● A district representative who will coordinate, support students and provide program oversight
● Administrative representation and planning assistance at all meetings of the partnership
● Coordinate student outreach and recruitment assessments for prospective students
● Eligible students with application materials, local admission policy, and all related program materials, so

that qualified students may make an informed decision regarding participation in this elective program

Item# 3497

122



● Enrolled students with a “week about” schedule, denoting academic coursework one week, and full-day
vocational training the next

● Designate enrolled students as Chapter 74 in October 1 SIMS Report each year

Operational Considerations 

● GPS students will complete all academic coursework in their home school district, following a “week
about” schedule, with academic coursework one week, and full-day vocational training the next.

● GPS students will attend full-day vocational training at the Montachusett Vocational Partnership (MVP)
Academy on alternating weeks.

● GPS students will follow a schedule mutually agreed upon by MRVTSD and GPS.  The academic calendars,
including non-typical school days, such as standardized testing dates, early release days, and professional
development days will be reviewed and agreed upon prior to the start of the school year.

● Delayed starts and early dismissals, as prescheduled or due to weather, will follow the MRVTSD schedule.
● Vocational training program information will be shared through the GPS guidance department and GPS

school liaison.
● MRVTSD will provide daily notice of student attendance and GPS will update daily attendance accordingly. 
● MRVTSD will report student conduct referrals to GPS. GPS will be responsible for assigning and

documenting appropriate discipline.

Services 

● Instruction:  GPS will provide academic instruction to all GPS students enrolled in the Partnership
Program.  To ensure students are progressing, and remain on track to graduate with their peers,
GPS will provide progress reports and transcripts to MRVTSD each quarter.  Similarly, MRVTSD
will provide technical instruction and provide progress reports, term grades, and attendance
records to GPS each quarter, at a minimum.  Program Directors, instructors, guidance counselors,
and parent liaisons will meet at regular intervals to discuss student progress in the program.

● Guidance Services:  GPS will provide guidance services including career assessments and the
development of a four-year career plan.  MRVTSD, working in partnership with GPS guidance, will
provide opportunities for eligible students to be placed in cooperative education during the
second semester of their Senior year.

● Transportation:  MRVTSD will provide standard bus transportation to GPS students enrolled in the
Partnership Program(s), both to/from the training facility. In the event, that a student’s living situation or
IEP requires specialized transportation, then the assignment and cost for that specialized transportation
will be provided by GPS.

● Special education; English language learners:  Students with disabilities and English Language
Learners will be supported, including implementing student’s IEP’s and 504’s during their
vocational instruction by their vocational instructors and supporting paraprofessionals.
Vocational instructors will be SEI endorsed.  GPS, as the LEA, will develop and provide progress
monitoring for all students with IEP’s. MRVTSD vocational instructors will provide competency-
based progress updates for students with IEP’s to GPS. GPS will share plans such as IEP’s, 504’s,
and EL proficiency levels with MRVTSD program director and MRVTSD instructional staff. If a
student’s IEP requires specific personnel to support that student’s needs, for example 1:1 support
or hearing impairment translation, then that personnel will be provided by GPS. Lastly, in
alignment with ongoing practice, the coordination of specialized service programs and
providers, all required IDEA/ADA evaluations, assessments and data collection will remain with
GPS.

Staffing 

123



Programs will be staffed to meet Chapter 74 guidelines for each technical area.  Staff will be highly qualified and 
hold current Massachusetts teaching licenses, and required endorsements.  Instructors will be evaluated by 
MRVTSD administrative personnel, annually.  Funding for staff will be budgeted from monies received from 
partner schools and grant funding. 

Admissions Policy 

Participation in the Chapter 74 Partnership Program is open to a total of twenty rising juniors and seniors. All 
Gardner Public School rising juniors and seniors are eligible to apply.  Interested students will submit an application 
to GPS guidance counselors and/or the program liaison during their sophomore year.  Vocational training and the 
“week about” academic schedule will commence junior year and will continue through senior year.  Proportion of 
students admitted to the Partnership Program from each school has been agreed upon by MRVTSD, FPS, GPS, and 
NRSD leadership.  The table below outlines the expected student enrollment at Montachusett Vocational 
Partnership (MVP) Academy, beginning Fall 2024: 

Participating District Percentage of MRVTSD 
current enrollment 

# of slots allotted to each partner 
school district 

Fitchburg Public Schools 23% 52 
Gardner Public Schools 12% 20 

Narragansett Regional School District 8% 12 
Total participants 84 

The application process may include an information session and interview component to allow students to express 
their interest and commitment and to discuss how the Chapter 74 Partnership program would help them 
accomplish their career and academic goals. 

Selection of candidates, admission to the Partnership Program, and subsequent enrollment at the Montachusett 
Vocational Partnership (MVP) Academy is solely determined by GPS personnel. 

Eligibility & Selection Criteria 

Student eligibility to participate in the Partnership Program is fully determined by the GPS administrative team. 
Furthermore, students who are enrolled in the Partnership Program will not be considered for transfer to 
MRVTSD. 

Enrollment: 

To enroll, interested students will complete the MVP Academy Application for Admission, which contains the 
following GPS forms: 

● MVP Academy New Pupil Information Form
● Consent for Release of Records
● Media Release Form
● Health Related Forms:

o Student Health/Emergency Form
o Medication Authorization Form
o Patient Consent Form

By completing these forms, GPS will have permission to share student records, and MRVTSD will have information 
needed to act appropriately in an emergency. 

Continued Eligibility 

124



A student’s continued eligibility to participate in the Partnership Program is based on progress reviewed at the 
end of each academic year to meet the following academic expectations: 

● Students that receive a failing grade (D or F at MRVTSD) are required to meet with their home school
Guidance Counselor and a representative of MRVTSD to determine a plan of action. 

● GPS is solely responsible for potential removal from the program.

Budget/Funding/Budget Development & Management 

The Partnership Program Budget is funded through private contributions, state grants and an annual per pupil 
assessment from the sending district to MRVTSD.  The total assessment is the difference between the current year 
DESE Office of School Finance Chapter 70 Foundation Budget rates per pupil for MRVTSD vs. GPS.  For example, 
in FY23 the Chapter 70 per pupil rate for vocational schools is $15,697.71 while the high school rate is $10,475.88. 
Therefore, the difference per pupil is $5,221.83, and this is the base per pupil contribution to MRVTSD from 
sending schools. NOTE:  Since the program will not commence until FY25, numbers noted above are subject to 
change, reflecting appropriate foundation budget rates, per pupil.   

The total contribution each year is based on the number of sending school students enrolled in vocational 
education at MRVTSD on October 1 of the previous year.  The number who are enrolled must be accurately 
reflected on the sending school’s previous year October 1 SIMS Report.  Payment is one year “behind” student 
enrollment.  The table gives an example of how student enrollment, SIMS Reporting, and sending school per 
student payment should align. 

Fiscal Year Students’ GPS Enrollment SIMS Report – listed as 
vocational student 

Sending School makes per 
pupil payment to MRVTSD 

FY25 (7/1/24 – 6/30/25) GPS students as 11th graders On 10/1/24 Report 
FY26 (7/1/25 – 6/30/26) GPS students as 12th graders On 10/1/25 Report FY26 based on 10/1/24 Report 

FY27 based on 10/1/25 Report 

Financial Management 

Each partner agrees to the following responsibilities in fiscal management 

● MRVTSD will plan the annual budget and provide overall fiscal management.
● MRVTSD will procure grant or other funding to support the program as needed.
● GPS will apply for Perkins grant funding and use funds specifically generated by the MVP

programs to offset costs associated with vocational training efforts.
● GPS will accurately enter GPS students enrolled in the Partnership Program as vocational

students on their October 1 SIMS Report
● MRVTSD, for the purpose of collection of the total assessment, will invoice GPS in three

installments per annum, in December, February and May each year according to the number of
students enrolled in the Partnership Program on October 1 of the previous school year.  This
should align with the Partnership program enrolled GPS students reported on the October 1 SIMS
Report.

● MRVTSD will invoice GPS monthly for the number of meals served based on the agreed upon rate
dependent on a possible continuation of universal meal plans.

● GPS will make payment on Partnership Program invoices in a timely manner.
● Budget or fiscal disagreements will be reviewed by MRVTSD and GPS Partnership Program

coordinators.  If disagreements cannot be resolved, they will be escalated to the Superintendents
of each district.

Decision Making Process 

125



All decisions including academic programs to be made regarding the partnership will be made by consensus of the 
representatives for each participating agency.  MRVTSD shall control all decisions related to vocational training 
program curriculum and content, hiring, evaluation, and retention of staff, and awarding of grades.  Resolution of 
issues not covered in this MOA will be escalated to school leadership. 

Dispute Resolution 

Any dispute arising under this MOA shall be decided by the MRVTSD and GPS Superintendent, or their duly 
authorized representative, and will be presented in writing.  The decision shall be final and conclusive unless 
determined by the court of competent jurisdiction to have been fraudulent or capricious or arbitrary, or so grossly 
erroneous as necessarily to imply bad faith, or not supported by substantial evidence.  In connection with any 
appeal proceeding under this clause, each school shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer 
evidence in support of its appeal.  Pending final decision of a dispute hereunder, each school shall proceed 
efficiently with the performance of this MOA and in accordance with the decision of the Superintendents or their 
duly authorized representatives. 

The dispute resolution process does not preclude consideration of law questions in connection with decisions 
provided for in the paragraph above, provided that nothing in this MOA shall be construed as making the final 
decision of any administrative official, representative, or board on a question of law. 

MOA Amendment or Termination 

This MOA is valid from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025.  If amendments are recommended by either party, it 
should be completed by June 30th in order to be applied to the MOA renewal prior to the following academic 
year. 

If either party chooses to withdraw from the partnership, it must be done by June 30th, one academic year in 
advance.  Further, either party must present the other party a notice of the parties’ intent to terminate at least 
sixty (60) days in advance of the start of the next academic year.  This will allow all enrolled students to complete 
the program prior to the termination of the partnership. 

126



Authorized Signatories 

As the representatives of Montachusett Regional Vocational Technical School District, we agree to all terms of 
the Memorandum of Agreement, proposed herein. 

____________________________________________ ___________________ 
Thomas R. Browne, MRVTSD Superintendent-Director Date 

____________________________________________ ___________________ 
Eric Commodore, Chair, Monty tech school Committee Date 

As the representatives of Gardner Public schools, we agree to all terms of the Memorandum of Agreement, 
proposed herein. 

____________________________________________ ___________________ 
Mark Pellegrino, Superintendent Date 

____________________________________________  ___________________ 
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson, Chair, Gardner School Committee Date 

127



Registration 2023-2024

___________________________________

Parents/Guardians of children entering

Gardner Public Schools in the Fall of 2023

*The age requirement for Kindergarten is 5 years of age
on or before August 31, 2023

We will be holding in person registrations at

Gardner Elementary School

March 14, 2023   10am-2pm

March 15, 2023   10am-2pm & 5pm-7pm

March 16, 2023   10am-2pm

Please enter through the Early Childhood Entrance, Door #11 for registrations

At the time of registration parents/guardians must bring the following:

*A copy of the child’s legal birth certificate

*Proof of Gardner Residency (utility bill, lease, mortgage)

*Physical, dated within the year

*Immunization records

*Lead test

*These are mandated forms required by the state. If all of the required health

information is not submitted, your child will not be completely registered for

Kindergarten and will not be able to start school until all the information is received.

Item# 3498

128



Community ● Appreciation ● Responsibility ● Excellence 

www.gardnerk12.org  70 Waterford Street, Gardner, MA 01440 (978) 632-1000 

March 6, 2023 

Data Driven Instruction: 

As part of implementing the Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) model throughout 
the district, we have continue to utilize the Linkit Benchmark assessment tool in the Linkit Data 
System to administer assessments, progress monitor, and adjust instructional practices to better 
prepare for spring MCAS assessments.  Below, you will see the aggregate results of the “Linkit” 
benchmark assessments for reading and mathematics.   

Linkit benchmark assessments are designed to measure growth in the acquisition and 
mastery of foundational literacy and mathematic standards.  Results measure conceptual 
understanding, procedural fluency, and capacity, identifying specific skill strengths and 
deficiencies unique to each grade level. The assessments are also predictive of MCAS success, 
however, we have found the prediction algorithm, so far, to be on the conservative end with our 
students performing higher than the predicted success rate. 

Linkit Math Benchmark Assessment Data 

Grade 1 Grade 2 Grade 3 Grade 4 
Grade 
5 

Grade 
6 

Grade 
7 Grade 8 

Winter 
Data 

Winter 
Data 

Winter 
Data 

Winter 
Data 

Winter 
Data 

Winter 
Data 

Winter 
Data 

Winter 
Data 

Percent of Students Meeting Expected Benchmark 
Actual Results   

2022-2023 
62% 40% 21% 15% 32% 44% 14% 10% 

Actual Results 
2021-2022 

57% 31% 1% 2% 10% 22% 11% 9% 

           Linkit ELA Benchmark Assessment Data 

Grade 1 Grade 2 Grade 3 Grade 4 Grade 5 Grade 6 
Grade 

7 Grade 8 

Winter 
Data 

Winter 
Data 

Winter 
Data 

Winter 
Data 

Winter 
Data 

Winter 
Data 

Winter 
Data 

Winter 
Data 

Percent of Students Meeting Expected Benchmark 
Actual Results   

2022-2023 
47% 14% 19%* 15%* 35% 34% 12% 37% 

Actual Results   
2021-2022 

41% 14% 37% 24% 36% 26% 25% 36% 

*Testing in grades 3 & 4 was administered five weeks earlier this winter than it was last winter.

The Linkit Data results indicate the percent of students at each grade level who are 
meeting expected benchmark achievement for the time of year that the assessment is 
administered.  Math data indicates marked growth at each grade level from the same time period 

Gardner Public Schools 
Catherine A. Goguen, Ed.D., Chief Academic Officer 

Item# 3499

129



Community ● Appreciation ● Responsibility ● Excellence 

in 2021-2022.  Literacy data reveals progress in grades 1 and 6, however, some variables make it 
difficult to compare to the same time period as in 2021-2022.  For example, testing in grades 3 & 
4 this winter was done earlier than last winter as a result of scheduling and technology conflicts.   

For both math and reading, the District is currently monitoring the percentage of students 
who fall into three categories of achievement and need of support.  Those categories are: 

1. Students performing within expected levels of achievement and needing little to no
additional support

2. Students approaching expected levels of achievement (“on the bubble”) and needing
some additional support

3. Students performing significantly below expected levels of achievement and needing
more frequent and intensive supports/interventions.

 Principals, Instructional Coaches, and other staff members are utilizing this information 
to determine specific areas of challenge for each grade level and each student.  Supports, 
interventions, and groupings are planned during common planning times, and implemented with 
checks for progress every two weeks.   

130



Community ● Appreciation ● Responsibility ● Excellence 

The Gardner Public School District does not discriminate due to race, color, sex, gender identity, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, disability, age, 
homelessness or limited English proficiency. 

www.gardnerk12.org 70 Waterford Street, Gardner, MA 01440 (978) 632-1000 

Grants, Communications & Compliance Update to School Committee – March 13, 2023 

Grants Awaiting Approval from DESE/DPH 

• School Behavioral Health Workforce and Service Expansion Grant

Grants in Process 
The district is currently coordinating an After Dark program for students to access electrical and carpentry vocational 
training at Monty Tech. Part of the process includes the district applying for Perkins Grant Funding to support this 
initiative. The application will be submitted on Friday, March 10, 2023, with a signed memorandum of understanding 
between the schools.  

Communications/Family Engagement 
The districtwide Family Engagement team has developed a team purpose and is working to define concrete actions steps 
for each building and the district. Each building has disaggregated data from Family, Student and Staff School Climate 
surveys and will be using these results to define action planning. met in December, receiving professional development 
on equitable family engagement best practices and how negative stereotype threat impacts interactions with students 
and families. The group used the time to establish drafted goals and action steps, with a working group set up to finalize 
these items.   

Members of the team, including the district outreach social worker, have worked with the CAC, Heywood and Growing 
Places to reimagine the Backpack Program as a community-wide effort. Families of Gardner students can opt into a food 
delivery program with GPS providing the referral, CAC providing shelf-stable food, and Growing Places providing fresh 
produce and food delivery. See attached flier for more details.  

Gardner Public Schools
Courtney Dunn, Grants, Communications & Compliance Manager

Item# 3500

131



Community ● Appreciation ● Responsibility ● Excellence 

 

www.gardnerk12.org 130 Elm Street, Gardner MA 01440 (978) 630-4076 

March 6, 2023 

Report to the School Committee 

Special Education Updates 

SPECIAL EDUCATION: 

The Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE) will be conducting an onsite visit 

April 3rd and 4th as the final component to the District’s Tiered Focus Monitoring. The site visit will 

primarily be focused on special education student record reviews. The Special Education office spends 

additional hours above and beyond regular working hours to prepare and review student records. The 

District will be informed of which files are selected a few weeks in in advance of DESE onsite visit. 

Staff interviews and building walkthroughs to specifically look at any building calm down rooms will 

also take place. Currently DESE has reviewed the District’s submission on multiple special education 

criterion and no concerns have been identified to date. The site visit will be followed with an exit 

meeting to summarize DESE’s preliminary findings. 

SEPAC: 

The Special Education Parent Advisory Council held a meeting on February 16, 2023. A vote was held 

on the proposed changes to the By-Laws which were accepted and passed. The changes to the By-Laws 

include that parents/guardians of students with disabilities attending Gardner Public Schools and placed 

on either an Individual Education Plans (IEPs) or 504 Plans attending Gardner Public School are able to 

hold officer positions and have voting rights. The previous By-Laws only specified parents of students 

placed on IEPs held these rights. In addition, the annual meeting schedule changed from having the 

expectation to hold monthly meetings to identifying a minimum amount of meetings which allowed the 

council more flexibility to schedule meetings throughout the year. 

The next meeting has been tentatively scheduled for March 23, 2023. The officers are working with the 

Federation for Children to set up presentations on Bullying and IEP Development. These trainings are 

free to districts that have a membership. Gardner’s special education budget includes this cost in the 

local budget each year as a support to the SEPAC.  

The DESE liaison for our upcoming Tiered Focus Monitoring, Michel McDonald, is planning to attend 

the SEPAC’s next meeting to explain the special education audit process and parent/guardian role. 

Gardner Public Schools
Joyce West, Director of Pupil Personnel 

Services

Item# 3501

132


	Agenda 3.13.23
	Mission Statement
	The mission of the Gardner Public School System is to prepare, in collaboration with parents, students who are ready upon graduation for the challenges of college and career without remediation.  This will be done in a safe, caring, just and equitable...
	Notice: The listing of agenda items are those reasonably anticipated by the Chairman which may be discussed at the meeting. Not all items listed may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent pe...
	Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting, or may transmit the meeting through any medium, subject to reasonable requirements of the Chair as to the number, placement, and operation of equipment used so as not to i...
	GARDNER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE SCHOOL COMMITTEE
	Monday, March 13, 2023, 6:30 PM
	City Council Chambers, City Hall, Gardner, MA 01440
	ORDER OF BUSINESS
	A. Call to Order
	B. Open Time for General Public
	C. Recognitions by the Superintendent –
	D. Consent Agenda
	a. Approval of Minutes: February 13, 2023
	b. Accept Grant Funds on Grant listing dated March 13. 2023 in the amount of $45,000.00
	c. Warrant # 23-32, dated February 9, 2023, in the amount of $128,909.82
	d. Warrant # 23-33, dated February 16 2023, in the amount of $988,701.64
	e. Warrant # 23-34, dated February 23, 2023, in the amount of $95,771.57
	f. Warrant # 23-35, dated March 2, 2023, in the amount of $1,162,988.42
	g. Donations -
	E. Subcommittee Report
	Facilities Subcommittee
	Finance Subcommittee
	Policy Subcommittee
	F. Student Advisory Board – GHS, Junior - Amber Cameron
	G. Discussion Items:
	New Business
	Item #3493 First Reading of Policies (Information)
	BEDH – Public Participation at School Committee Meetings
	BID –  School Committee Member Compensations
	CA – Administration Goals and Objectives
	CE – School Superintendent
	DH – Bonded Employees and Officers
	DI – Fiscal Accounting and Reporting
	DIE - Audits
	BDBB – Duties of Vice-Chairperson
	BDFA-E-3 – Conduct of School Council Business
	DBD – Budget Planning
	Item #3495 Field Trip - GHS Senior Class Trip, Hershey PA, April 28 & 29, 2023 (Vote Required)
	Item #3496 Program of Studies (Vote Required)
	Item #3497 Monty Tech After Dark Program MOU (Vote Required)
	Item #3498 Kindergarten Registration 2023-2024 (Information)
	Item #3499 Curriculum Coordinator Update (Information)
	Item #3500 Grants Administrator Update (Information)
	Item #3501 Special Education Update (Information)
	Item #3502 SEPAC Update (Information)
	Item #3503 MSBA – New Building Project
	H. Communications
	I. Final Comments of School Committee
	J. Executive Session
	K. Adjournment

	Briefing 3.13.23
	GARDNER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
	BRIEFING
	ORDER OF BUSINESS
	A. Call to Order
	B. Open Time for General Public
	C. Recognitions by the Superintendent –
	D. Consent Agenda
	a. Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting, February 13, 2023 – The School Committee                               Chair recommends approval of meeting minutes.
	b. Accept Grant Funds on Grant listing dated March 13. 2023 in the amount of $45,000
	c. Warrant # 23-32, dated February 9, 2023, in the amount of $128,909.82
	d. Warrant # 23-33, dated February 16, 2023, in the amount of $988,701.64
	e. Warrant # 23-34, dated February 23, 2023, in the amount of $95,771.57
	f. Warrant # 23-35, dated March 2, 2023, in the amount of $1,162,988.42
	g. Donations -
	E. Subcommittee Report
	F. Student Advisory Board – GHS, Junior - Amber Cameron
	G. Discussion Items:
	H. Communications
	I. Final Comments of School Committee
	J. Executive Session
	K. Adjournment

	School Cte. 2.13.23
	Grants Funding Approval for Consent Agenda 3.1.23
	W#23-32
	23-32

	W#23-33
	23-33

	W#23-34
	23-34

	W#23-35
	23-35

	Facilities Meeting Minutes 2.9.2023
	Fincom Meeting Minutes 3.7.23
	Policy Minutes 3.2.23
	BEDH Public Participation at School Committee Meetings (1)
	BID School Committee Member Compensation Updated for March Meeting
	CA Administrative Goals _ Objectives Updated for March Meeting
	CE School Superintendent For March Meeting
	DH Bonded Employees Updated for March Meeting
	BONDED EMPLOYEES AND OFFICERS

	DI Fiscal Accounting and Reporting Updated for March Meeting
	FISCAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING

	DIE Audits Updated for March Meeting
	AUDITS

	BDBB Duties of Vice Chair Updated 2.2.23
	BDFA-E-3 School Councils Updated to BDFA 2.2.23
	DBD Budget Planning Updated 2.2.23
	BUDGET PLANNING

	GHS Senior Class Trip Field TRip Form 4.28-29.23
	Edit Notes for Program of Studies 2023-24
	Edits on Program of Study- old copy
	Final Proposed Partnership Program MOU 3-7-23
	The following agreement is entered into between Montachusett Regional Vocational Technical School District (MRVTSD), located at 1050 Westminster Street, Fitchburg, Massachusetts and Gardner Public Schools (GPS), with administrative offices located at ...
	MRVTSD is designated as the “Program District” and GPS is partnering with the Program District for the purpose of enrolling their students in the following Chapter 74 training programs:

	Kindergarten Registration Flyer 2023-2024
	SC Report CAO 3.13.23
	SC Reports Grants 3.1.23
	SC Report Special Ed 3.1.23



